ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORID

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

٧.

BRIAN WALTER KIPP,

Respondent.

MAR 1996 CLERK SUPPLIES GOUR

SID J. WHITE

FSC No.

87,486

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JOHN M. KLAWIKOFSKY
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Florida Bar No. 930997
Westwood Center
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700
Tampa, Florida 33607
(813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The respondent, Appellant down below, appealed his conviction and sentence for second degree murder and robbery based upon the trial court's failure to suppress his statements to police.

In December 1992, Respondent and a companion were in Georgia using credit cards issued to someone by the name of James Boyington, driving a car registered to Boyington, and staying in a hotel room under the name of Boyington. James Boyington had been murdered in Zephyrhills, Florida. Georgia authorities took Respondent into custody and interrogated him on two occasions. Kipp v. State, No. 94-00091 slip. op. at 2 (2d DCA January 19, 1996).

Respondent was given his full **Miranda** warnings prior to the first interview with Georgia authorities and waived these rights. (R. 233-234). Respondent was reminded **of** his constitutional rights prior to the second interview with Georgia police. (R. **196**, T. **440**).

The Second District's opinion states that Respondent was not again informed of his <u>Miranda</u> rights prior to the second interrogation. <u>Kipp</u>, slip op. at 3. However, the record indicates that Respondent was reminded of his rights prior to the second interrogation and waived these rights,

Q. You still understand your rights that were read to you earlier?

Do you still understand what your rights are?

- A. Yeah.
- Q. **Are** you still willing to waive your rights and talk to us, answer questions?
- A. (No audible response).

(R.196).

Respondent's response is clarified by Detective Bank's testimony during the suppression hearing. During defense counsel's cross-examination, the detective was asked the following:

- Q. And then Mr. Kipp is asked again by Detective Dawes in your presence, I believe: Are you still willing to waive your rights and talk to us as requested? And Mr. Kipp says: Sure.
- A. Yes, sir.

(T. **440)**.

The Second District determined that Respondent received sufficient Miranda prior to the first interrogation. However, the court determined that during the second interrogation Respondent either equivocally or unequivocally invoked his right to remain silent, and the detectives disregarded his requests and continued questioning him. Kipp, slip. op. at 3. The Second District held that the second interrogation carried over to taint the third interrogation later conducted by Florida

detectives. Kipp, slip. Op. at 4. However, during the interview, Respondent stated:

- **A.** And I probably think I shouldn't probably say any more.
- Q. Okay.
- O. That's all you want to say?
- **A.** Except I'd like to have a cigarette and a soda, maybe please.
- Q. Sure. We can get you something to drink.
- A. (Inaudible) I can tell **I'm**(inaudible) any trouble. Right. I was in deep trouble that night.
- Q. Well, may I?
- Q. Certainly.
- Q. Actually, let's clear this up. You're not Mr. Boyington, right? We do know that. We have established that. It's Mr. Kipp?
- A. Mr. Kipp has two Ps.

(R.198-199)

The detective then stated as follows:

- Q. You told me just a few minutes ago that that's all you had to say. Now, are you telling me again that you want to waive your rights and--
- **A.** I'm telling you that I didn't rob anybody.
- Q. Okay.
- A, (Inaudible) no thief.

- **Q.** Well, I mean, you know, without -- if you want to tell me what happened, I'll be glad to listen to you. If you would rather not talk, then I understand that. I don't have any problem **with** that. Whatever you want to do.
- **A.** I just want to tell you that I didn't rob anybody. (Inaudible) robber. I'm just tired.

(R.200-201).

The Second District determined that it was error to allow into evidence Respondent's statements obtained during the second and third interrogations. <u>Kipp</u>, slip. **op.** at **6.**

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of the supreme court or another district court of appeal on the same point of law. Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Petitioner, the State of Florida, alleges conflict between the holding in the instant case and this Honorable Court's decision in <u>Traylor v. State</u>, 596 So. 2d 957 (Fla. 1992) and the Fourth Districts's decision in <u>State v. Owen</u>, 654 So. 2d 200 (Fla. 4th DCA), <u>review granted</u>, 662 So. 2d 933 (Fla. 1995).

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT IN THIS CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THIS COURT IN TRAYLOR V. STATE, 596 So. 2d 957 (Fla. 1992) AS WELL AS THE FOURTH DISTRICT'S DECISION IN STATE V. OWEN, 654 So. 2d 200 (Fla. 4th DCA), review granted, 662 So. 2d 933 (Fla. 1995).

The Second District's opinion states that Respondent's confession was obtained in violation of <u>Traylor v. State</u>, **596** *So.* **2d 957** (Fla. 1992), and the trial court erred in failing to suppress this evidence.

The State respectfully submits that the opinion in the instant case is in conflict with this Court's opinion in <u>Traylor</u>, especially in light of the decisions in <u>Davis v</u>. <u>United States</u>, _____, U.S. _____, 114 S. Ct. 2350, 129 L. Ed. 2d 362 (1994) and <u>State v</u>. Owen, 654 So. 2d 200 (Fla. 4th DCA), <u>review granted</u>, 662 So. 2d 933 (Fla. 1995).

Under <u>Davis</u>, for Federal Fifth Amendment purposes, police questioning may continue until and unless **a** suspect unequivocally invokes his right to remain silent. In <u>Owen</u>, the Fourth District acknowledged that the Florida Supreme Court relied heavily on federal law when it determined the admissibility of the confession in <u>Traylor</u>. The Fourth District accordingly certified the following question:

DO THE PRINCIPLES ANNOUNCED BY THE UNITED STATES

SUPREME COURT IN <u>DAVIS</u> **APPLY** TO THE ADMISSIBILITY OF CONFESSIONS IN FLORIDA, IN LIGHT OF <u>TRAYLOR</u>?

Owen is currently pending in the Florida Supreme Court, Case No. 85, 781. Deck v. State, 653 So. 2d 435 (Fla. 5th DCA 1995) is similarly pending in the Florida Supreme Court, Case No. 85, 652. In light of the foregoing, the State respectfully submits that the Second District's opinion misapprehends Respondent's second interrogation by Georgia police.

The Second District's opinion states that at various points during the interview, Respondent either equivocally or unequivocally invoked his right to remain silent. Respondent's requests were at best equivocal. Any equivocal requests were properly clarified by the Georgia detectives. The detective's questioning was proper pursuant to Tram. Accordingly the state contends that this opinion expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of this Honorable Court and other district courts of appeal. Even assuming the Georgia police did not follow Traylor, the standards set forth in Traylor should be reconsidered in light of Davis and Owen.

CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing facts, arguments, and authorities, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Honorable Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction under art. V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const., to resolve the conflict outlined above.