FILED

S!DJ WHITE

MAR 7 1996

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK SUPPREME COURT

By

Chief Deputy Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA, Petitioner,

٧.

CASE NO. 87,484

BRIAN WALTER KIPP, Respondent. DCA No.94-00091

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

A. R. Mander, III

GREENFELDER, MANDER, HANSON,
MURPHY & DWYER

14217 Third Street
Dade City, Florida 33525
(904) 567-0411
Florida Bar No. 0230405
Attorneys for Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Petitioner inappropriately included a statement of facts in its jurisdictional brief. The sole issue for your determination is whether this Supreme Court has jurisdiction to discretionarily review the instant decision of the second district court of appeal.

Facts regarding the interrogation process are irrelevant to your Jurisdictional determination. This point is raised because the Petitioner's factual references are incomplete and misleading and tend to foster a wrong impression. The state subtly suggests, with the **out** of context recitation of part of the interrogation colloquy, that the appellate court reached the wrong decision regarding whether Kipp actually made an equivocal invocation of his Miranda rights. Suffice to say the unabridged version of the interrogation amply reveals there was substantial, competent evidence in the record to support the appellate court's factual findings. But of course that determination is not at **issue.**

The only factual finding necessary for your consideration is the finding, which you must presume to be true, that Kipp made an equivocal invocation of his right to remain silent and detectives disregarded his request to terminate the questioning and continued questioning him. If so, that factual determination was applied consistently with the requirements from Traylor v. State.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Respondent agrees with the Petitioner's recitation of the legal basis for discretionary review in this case. This Supreme Court may only exercise discretionary jurisdiction if there is direct and express conflict with a decision of the supreme court or another district court of appeal on the same point of law. Unfortunately for the Petitioner's position, such conflict does not exist.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Petitioner disingenuously alleges conflict between the holding in the instant case and this Court's decision in Traylor v. State, 596 So.2d 957 (Fla. 1992). The source of the conflict is never described. In fact, the district court opinion explicitly relies and was based on Traylor. Rather than conflicting with Traylor, the DCA opinion rests upon it.

Further, the Petitioner urges conflict between the instant opinion and the fourth district's decision in State v. Owen, 654 So.2d 200 (Fla. 4th DCA), review granted, 662 So.2d 933 (Fla. 1995). Such a suggestion of conflict is a tad misleading because the Owen court also affirmed the suppression of statements made after there had been an equivocal invocation of Miranda, also in reliance on Traylor. Owen and Kipp are not conflicting, but are consistent.

The Owen court did certify the question whether the principles espoused in the U.S. Supreme Court decision in Davis or those from the Traylor decision should apply to equivocal invocations of the right to remain silent. The certification of that question, however, did not create conflict with the Kipp opinion because the certification question did not create any controlling precedent.

What the Petitioner really wants this Court to do is limit the Traylor holding. But that may not be done in this instance by conflict jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT IN THIS CASE DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH THE DECISION OF THIS COURT IN TRAYLOR V. STATE, 596 So.2d 957 (Fla. 1992), BUT IN FACT WAS EXPLICITLY BASED ON TRAYLOR; MOREOVER, THERE IS NOT CONFLICT WITH STATE v. OWEN, 654 So.2d 200 (Fla. 4TH DCA), review granted, 662 So.2d 933 (Fla. 1995) BECAUSE OWEN DID NOT PROMULGATE A BINDING AND CONTRARY POINT OF LAW BUT MERELY CERTIFIED A QUESTION TO THIS COURT. (As restated by the Respondent)

A. Conflict with Traylor v. State 596 So. 2d 957 (Fla. 1992).

The Petitioner undiscerningly argues the instant decision of the second district court of appeal expressly and directly conflicts with this Court's decision in Traylor v. State, 596 So.2d 957 (Fla, 1992). The Petitioner never describes any particular portion of the Kipp opinion that it feels conflicts with Traylor. The failure to define the conflict with particularity is enough to deny discretionary review.

Moreover, when the *Kipp* decision is analyzed, it is apparent that there is no conflict because the decision was explicitly based on principles set out in Traylor.

Traylor clearly established the proposition that when called upon to decide matters of fundamental rights, Florida's state courts are to give primacy to our state Constitution. Bluntly put, state courts are to ignore federal case law decisions until an initial analysis of a claimed constitutional violation has been examined under our state court principles.

Based upon the primacy analysis **and** the experience under Miranda and its progeny, the Florida Supreme Court held in

Traylor that to ensure the voluntariness of confessions, the Self-Incrimination Clause of Article I, Section 9, Florida Constitution, requires that prior to custodial interrogation in Florida suspects must be told that they have a right to remain silent, that anything they say will be used against them in court, that they have a right to a lawyer's help, and that if they cannot pay far a lawyer one will be appointed to help them. This holding recounts the federal standard of the commonly called "Miranda warnings" and explicitly adopts them as the free standing law in Florida. Henceforth the such warnings could more properly be called "Traylor warnings,"

Traylor went on to require that:

Under Section 9, if the suspect indicates in any manner that he or she does not want to be interrogated, interrogation must not begin or, if it has already begun, must immediately stop.

Traylor v. State, 596 \$0.2d 957, 966 (Fla. 1992).

Under Traylor, interrogation must stop if a suspect indicates in any manner that he or she does not want to be interrogated.

If there was an equivocal indication that Kipp did not want to be interrogated, under prior and still binding state court precedent, all questioning should have been terminated except those that clarified Kipp's wishes. See Owen v. State, 560 So.2d 207,211 (Fla. 1990), cert. denied, 498 U.S. 855, 11 S.Ct. 152, 112 L.Ed.2d 118 (1990) and Long v. State, 517 So.2d 664 (Fla. 1987), cert. denied, 486 U.S. 1017, 108 S.Ct. 1754, 100 L.Ed.2d 216 (1988).

Owen and Long are clearly still binding. There was no question prior to the advent of the decision of the United States Supreme Court in Davis v. United States, ___U.S. ___, 114

S.Ct.2350, 129 L.Ed.2d 362 (1994). Davis dramatically altered the federal rule in regard to the obligation of an interrogating officer confronted with a suspect's equivocal reference to a Miranda right. In Davis the court receded from prior federal decisions establishing a rule similar to that espoused in Owen and Long. In Davis the majority opinion expressly declined to adopt a rule requiring officers to ask qualifying questions, and stated:

If the suspect's statement is not an unambiguous of unequivocal request for counsel, the officers have no obligation to stop questioning him.

Davis v. United States, ____U.S. ___, 114 S.Ct. 2350, 129 L.Ed.2d 362 (1994).

Davis' diminution of rights under the federal system is not applicable to a review of a defendant's rights against self-incrimination under the Florida Constitution. That was the fundamental point in Traylor.

Explicit recognition of Davis' non-application in Florida is apparent from a review of a recent roller coaster case from the Fifth District Court of Appeal. In an initial opinion, applying principles from <code>Owen</code> and <code>Long</code>, the 5th DCA reversed a conviction that <code>was</code> based upon the erroneous admission of statements made after the defendant made an equivocal assertion of a Miranda right. Subsequent questions were not limited to clarifying <code>the</code>

defendant's wishes but were designed "to clear matters up." Deck v. State, 20 Fla. Law Weekly D36 (Fla. 5th DCA Dec. 22, 1994).

The state successfully moved for rehearing, apparently based on the new Davis decision, and a totally revised opinion was rendered. This time the trial court action was affirmed with explicit reliance upon the newly cited decision in Davis. Deck v. State, 653 So.2d 435 (Fla. 5th DCA 1995).

Subsequently, the court granted the defendant's request for a rehearing and again substituted a totally revised opinion. The conviction was reversed once again. The court opined that Traylor directly addressed the issue of an equivocal assertion of a Miranda right, and that opinion was controlling rather than Davis. Traylor expressly argued that a fundamental right created by the state constitution must be respected even if no similar right is recognized by the federal courts. Deck v. State, 20 Fla. Law Weekly D747 (Fla. 5th DCA March 24, 1995).

In the instant case, the opinion repeatedly cites to the above principles from Traylor. Far from being in conflict with Traylor, the result in Kipp was founded upon that decision.

B. <u>Conflict</u> with **State v.** Owen. **654 So.2d 200 (**Fla. 4th DCA), review granted, 662 So.2d **933** (Fla. 1995).

Nor does the Kipp decision conflict with State V. Owen, 654 So.2d 200 (Fla. 4th DCA), review granted, 662 So.2d 933 (Fla. 1995).

In Owen v. State, 560 So. 2d 207 (Fla. 1990) this Court

reversed a conviction because a confession had been obtained after an equivocal invocation of *Miranda*. Between the reversal and the retrial the U.S. Supreme Court clarified its interpretation of the scope of the *Miranda* protections in *Davis* v. U.S. As noted above, the U.S. Supreme Court no longer requires questioning to stop after an equivocal or ambiguous invocation of *Miranda*. Prior to retrial in Owen, the state moved the trial court to once again allow the confession, pursuant to *Davis*. However, the trial court followed this Court's direction from Owen v. State, 560 \$0.2d 207 (Fla. 1990) and held the confession inadmissible despite *Davis*.

The state then took certiorari to the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Interestingly, the district court opinion denied certiorari specifically acknowledging that it was not certain whether *Davis* was the law in Florida, thus affirming the trial court's rejection of *Davis*.

The upshot of the above is that the specific precedential holding of Owen does not conflict with the decision in Kipp.

The Fourth DCA did certify the following question as one of great public importance:

DO THE PRINCIPLES ANNOUNCED BY THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT IN DAVIS APPLY TO THE ADMISSIBILITY OF CONFESSIONS IN FLORIDA, IN LIGHT OF TRAYLOR?

Certification of that question did not create conflict. Conflict would have been created had the Fourth District actually ruled that *Davis* principles applied to confessions in Florida rather than *Traylor* principles. But it didn't.

holding.

Conflict also would have been created if this Court had ruled prior to the *Kipp* decision that Davis applied to confessions in Florida rather than *Traylor* principles. But, as of the date of the Second DCA opinion in *Kipp*, this Court has never held that police can continue interrogating a suspect after the suspect has made an equivocal invocation of his *Miranda* rights. Accordingly, there is no conflict between the *Kipp* decision and any ruling of this Court.

The Second District Court of Appeal chose to apply the rule of law set forth in Traylor, enthusiastically applied in Deck and grudgingly followed in Owen. The Second DCA seemed sure of the applicability of Traylor and did not chose to certify any questions to clarify its meaning. Accordingly, there is no decisional conflict. And there is no discretionary jurisdiction in this Court based on express and direct conflict.

CONCLUSION

The decision in Kipp does not conflict with Traylor. Quite the contrary, Kipp was posited on principles espoused in Traylor.

Neither does Kipp expressly and directly conflict with the holding in State v. Owen, 654 So.2d 200 (Fla. 4th DCA), review granted, 662 So.2d 933 (Fla. 1995). In fact, the holding in Owen is in accord with Kipp and Traylor. The fact that Owen certified a question of great public importance does not create conflict, even if a potential answer creates the possibility of a limitation of Traylor.